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In accordance with Section VI Terms and conditions, E Clarification of terms, STCU provides the 
following answers to questions received from interested parties in relation to the tender No 2021-
25. 
 

No Question Answer 

1 In accordance with RFP Section IV TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS “there is a sample form of 
Contract for Audit Services to be executed 
between the Auditor and the STCU included 
as Attachment D and there is a statement that 
this request for proposals and any resulting 
contract shall be governed by the Arbitration 
Rules of the United Nations Commission on 
the International Trade Law (UNCITRAL) and 
applying general principles of Belgian law”. 

Please advise if applicable law and courts 
could be changed to Ukrainian law as KPMG 
Ukraine is legal entity incorporated under the 
laws of Ukraine, STCU mostly operates on the 
territory of Ukraine and services will be 
provided on the territory of Ukraine – thus 
the contract for audit services should be 
subject to the interpretation and regulation of 
the laws of Ukraine. Please also advice if any 

changes could be made to a sample form 
of Contract for Audit Services attached to RFP 
if necessary, after review of our internal 
lawyers.   

In the interests of ensuring a competitive 
tender involving the expenditure of 
public funds (EU and US taxpayer funds) 
and to achieve a level playing field all 
tenderers are requested to tender on the 
same terms and conditions. Therefore, 
we include the form of the contract in 
our RFP. 

This form of contract has been used since 
STCU first had a private entity perform 
the annual audit and has always been 
acceptable in the past.  

Belgian law is included as the tender is 
international a country needs to be 
specified and as STCU is majority EU 
funded Belgium is considered the most 
appropriate. 

On contracting minor changes could be 
made to the wording if they do not alter 
the competitive nature of the tender 
procedure. 

2 In Section III B REPORTING AND DELIVERY 
REQUIREMENTS it is stated that 
“Independent Auditor’s report on the financial 
statements should either: 

i) Describe the scope of the Auditor’s 
testing of compliance with laws and 
regulations and internal controls and 
present the results of those tests or 

ii)  Refer to separate reports containing 
that information”. 

Please advise if any additional reports in 
respect of compliance with laws and 

No other reports were issued in 2020 
other than those referred to in the RFP 
and their location is as indicated therein. 

Reports for previous years are also 
available at those locations. 

http://www.stcu.int/
mailto:Anthony.nichol@stcu.int
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regulations and internal controls were issued 
by auditor for 2020 except for Independent 
Auditors’ report published on the 
Organization’s site together with the financial 
statements? If yes, could you please share it 
with us. 

3 We kindly ask you to provide the required 
deadlines for the audit. 

 

STCU is required to present its financial 
statements to the Governing Board, this 
is usually held in late May/early June and 
therefore the audit needs to be 
completed before then. 

4 From the information in RFP we know that 
the STCU employed over 2,200 scientists 
working on approximately 77 projects 
(approx. 85% in Ukraine, the remainder in 
Georgia, Azerbaijan, and Moldova). What is 
the concentration of expenses per projects 
(e.g. top 10 or 20 projects represent __% of 
Organization’s expenses)? 

What does 85% mean – share of scientists’ 
number or project quantity that are based in 
Ukraine?  

 

 

 

What is the allocation of 
expenses/revenues/assets (separately for 
project, administrative budget and 
supplemental budget expenses) between the 
countries the STCU operates in? 

 

Where (what country or office) accounting 
and primary documents are stored? If 
documents are stored in different offices or 
countries, is it possible to collect them for 
provision centrally to auditors in Ukrainian 
head office or in electronic format? And what 
is the language of primary documents – 
Ukrainian, English or there are also other 
languages? 

In 2020 the top 10 projects constituted 
59% of project expenditure and the top 
20 projects constituted 75%. 

 

 

 
 
The 85% refers to an approximate 
percentage of the total research projects 
which are in Ukraine. The percentage 
applies to number of projects but broadly 
the number of scientists and the project 
expenditures would follow the same 
distribution. 

Project expenses are about 85% in 
Ukraine, Supplementary Budget expenses 
are about the same and administrative 
expenses are about 93% in Ukraine 

 

 

All accounting records are maintained in 
Kyiv. 

STCU as an international organization 
primarily uses English, all our staff speak 
English, their national language and most 
speak Russian. 

Documents are either in English or 
Ukrainian with some in the languages of 
the other recipient countries. 

5 From the communication below we see that 
Ukrainian audit companies are invited to 
participate in the tender. However, in the past 
20+ years audit reports on the financial 

5.1 Due to the nature of STCU’s 
operations the Governing Board required 
the auditors to be from a Funding Party 
country (EU member state or USA). The 
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statement of the STCU were singed by foreign 
offices of KPMG and Russel Bedford. 

5.1   Why in prior periods audit was performed 
by foreign auditors and now Ukrainian audit 
firms were invited to the tender? 

5.2 Also, could you please explain why do 
you plan to change the auditor (e.g. any 
rotation rules)? 

5.3 Who are the main users of the audit 
report? 

Governing Board has decided to expand 
this to all STCU member countries (EU, 
USA, Ukraine, Georgia, Moldova and 
Azerbaijan). 

5.2 STCU has not requirement for auditor 
rotation. We conduct an open tender for 
auditors every two or three years. 

5.3 The main users of the audit report are 
the Funding Parties (the EU and the US 
government). The audit report is also on 
our website. 

6 Does the STCU has non-for-profit status in all 
countries? Does STCU pay taxes or has 
exempt based on non-for-profit status in 
other countries as well as in Ukraine? 

The STCU is an intergovernmental 
organization with diplomatic status in the 
recipient countries (Ukraine, Georgia, 
Moldova and Azerbaijan) and pays no 
taxes in these countries as a result of this 
status and in accordance with the 
Agreement to Establish the STCU. 

STCU does not make a profit in that the 
funding parties fund our operating costs 
up to the amount of expenditure. 

Likewise the Parties and Partners fund 
projects up to the project expenditure. 

STCU’s only income is Partner fees and 
bank interest which offset the Parties’ 
contributions to operating costs. 

7 Please provide more details regarding the 
project expenditures: 

7.1 What is the composition of project 
expenditures (e.g. share of grants to 
scientists, technical services, equipment and 
overhead, in % or USD) in 2021 and 2020. 

 

 

 

 

7.2 It is not clear on what terms does the 
STCU work with scientist - in the financial 
statement it is presented as grants to 
scientists and in the RFP as salaries of 
scientists. Could you please clarify what are 
the terms of work with scientists (contract of 
civil law nature, contract with individual 
entrepreneurs, sub-recipients agreements 

 

 
7.1 Project expenditures include: 
payments to scientists; purchase of 
equipment; purchase of services; 
construction works and payments 
towards overheads of National Academy 
of Sciences Institutes. In 2020 the project 
expenses were approximately grants 
40%; equipment 18%; other direct costs 
39%; overheads 3%) 

 
7.2 Scientists work under unique 
agreements and are paid for the days 
they work on a project at an agreed daily 
rate.  
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etc.) and what is the base for remuneration 
(fixed monthly payments or payments for 
work done based time spent and in 
accordance with act of services provision, 
individual grants to scientists etc.)? 

7.3 What is the process of program 
expenses verification and what evidence of 
expenses occurrence does the Organization 
receive and maintain when such expenses are 
incurred and reported by the scientists? 

 

 

 

 
7.3 All expenses are paid centrally by 
STCU staff and all documentation is kept 
in Kyiv. 

8 We understand that the mission of STCU is to 
support research and development activities 
for peaceful applications by scientists and 
engineers formerly involved with the 
development of weapons of mass destruction, 
to advance global peace and prosperity 
through chemical, biological, radiological, and 
nuclear risk mitigation by supporting civilian 
science and technology partnerships and 
collaboration that address global security 

threats and advance non-proliferation. What 
are these peaceful areas? How does the STCU 
use the results of scientists’ work in practice? 
Where the deliverables of projects are used 
(can you share couple of examples)? 

STCU does not use the results of the 
“scientists’ work”, any intellectual 
property derived from a research project 
is either the property of the Institute and 
the scientists or it is the property of the 
funding partner depending on the project 
agreement used. 

Examples of the scientific work 
performed by the scientists are available 
in the STCU Annual Reports on our 
website. 

9 We have read Sample form of audit services 
agreement attached to RFP. Usually, we 
perform audit under our standard agreement 
terms (the template is attached). In case our 
audit firm will be selected as winner of the 
tender, is it possible to sign our standard 
agreement (attached to this e-mail) or amend 
Sample form of the Agreement attached to 
RFP? 

Please refer to answer to question 1 
above 

 

 
Anthony Nichol 
Chief Financial Officer 
 


